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This matter came on f o r hearing before the New 

Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , MICHAEL E. STOGNER, 

Hearing Examiner, on Thursday, December 7 t h , 199 5, a t the 

New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources 

Department, Porter H a l l , 2040 South Pacheco, Santa Fe, New 

Mexico, Steven T. Brenner, C e r t i f i e d Court Reporter No. 7 

f o r the State of New Mexico. 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

8:48 a.m.: 

EXAMINER STOGNER: C a l l next case, Number 11,432. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of Southland Royalty 

Company f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio A r r i b a County, New 

Mexico. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of the Ap p l i c a n t , and I have t h r e e witnesses t o 

be sworn. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any other appearances? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce from the 

Hin k l e law f i r m . I have a bunch of people I'm 

rep r e s e n t i n g . I don't have any witnesses. 

The people I am repre s e n t i n g are Ramona B. Sweet, 

Trustee of the Ramona B. Sweet Revocable T r u s t ; Hooper, 

Kimba l l and Williams, I n c . ; Mabel Read, as Trustee of the 

Warren Clark T r u s t ; Warren Clark; Carolyn Clark Oatman, 

i n d i v i d u a l l y and as agent f o r Warren Clark; Mabel Read and 

W.W. Oatman, co-trustees of the Warren Clark Testamentary 

T r u s t ; and Christopher C. P h i l l i p s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I assume t h a t the p a r t i e s 

which you're representing are p a r t i e s t o be force-pooled? 

MR. BRUCE: They are, yes, s i r . They're the — 
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most of the uncommitted working i n t e r e s t owners. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Roughly what percentage t o t a l ? 

MR. BRUCE: Just a second, Mr. Examiner, I can — 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Just a rough estimate. 

MR. BRUCE: Maybe Tom knows o f f the top of h i s 

head. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you know? 

MR. BRUCE: 2 5 t o 3 0 percent, somewhere i n t h a t 

range, I t h i n k . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, my landman w i l l have 

t o respond. I'm not c e r t a i n of t h a t percentage. 

MR. BRUCE: I t h i n k I heard i t . I t ' s somewhere 

i n the 2 0-percent, 2 5-percent range. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, 2 0 t o 30, okay. Just 

wanting t o p r e l i m i n a r i l y see what i s going on. 

Any other appearances? There are none. 

And you have no witnesses, Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: I may have one, but h e ' l l be q u i t e 

b r i e f . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, I ' l l t e l l you what: 

U n t i l — Let me go ahead and swear Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s witnesses 

f o r Southland Royalty i n . And should you need your 

witness, then we w i l l swear them i n a t t h a t time. 

MR. BRUCE: Okay. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: W i l l the Meridian witnesses 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

7 

please stand? I'm so r r y , Southland Royalty witnesses? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Gentlemen, i s t h e r e any need 

f o r opening remarks, or s h a l l we j u s t go ahead and proceed 

w i t h the testimony? 

MR. BRUCE: I don't have any opening remarks. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t h i n k I ' l l l e t Mr. Van Goebel 

la y out the f a c t s i t u a t i o n as my c l i e n t understands i t . 

And so we're ready t o proceed, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Please. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We c a l l , then, as our f i r s t 

witness Mr. Van Goebel. Mr. Goebel i s a petroleum landman 

w i t h Southland Royalty Company. He resides i n Farmington, 

New Mexico. 

VAN L. GOEBEL. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Van Goebel, f o r the record, s i r , would you 

please s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s Van Goebel. I'm w i t h Meridian 

Oil/Southland, located i n Farmington. I'm a landman. 

Q. For purposes of t h i s case, Southland Royalty 

Company i s operator of the e x i s t i n g spacing u n i t ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And you're operating as an employee f o r t h a t 

company i n s o f a r as t h i s p o o l i n g case i s concerned? 

A. Yes. 

Q. As p a r t of your land d u t i e s , have you made 

y o u r s e l f knowledgeable about t h i s e x i s t i n g w e l l b o r e , i n 

terms of the land c o n f i g u r a t i o n and the ownership of those 

p a r t i e s t h a t p a r t i c i p a t e or have p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the Mancos 

pro d u c t i o n from t h i s e x i s t i n g wellbore? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What does Southland Royalty propose t o do? 

A. The H i l l Federal Number 2Y w e l l was d r i l l e d 

o r i g i n a l l y as a Mancos-Dakota w e l l producer i n the Mancos. 

I t ' s no longer productive. 

We've received a l e t t e r from the Bureau of Land 

Management, wanting t o know our procedures f o r p l u g g i n g . 

Rather than p l u g , we would l i k e t o recomplete the w e l l t o 

the Mesaverde formation. 

Q. As a Mancos w e l l , what has been the acreage 

d e d i c a t i o n t o the well? 

A. This w e l l i n the Mancos i s loc a t e d i n the 

Gavilan-Mancos f i e l d . At the time i t was d r i l l e d , the 

spacing was 320 acres. Later the spacing was changed t o 

64 0s, but t h i s w e l l was grandfathered i n under the o r i g i n a l 

320 acres. 
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Q. So what p o r t i o n of i t s Section 25 was dedicated 

t o the Mancos production? 

A. The n o r t h h a l f . 

Q. I f the w e l l i s recompleted as a Mesaverde w e l l , 

what i s the proposed dedication? 

A. The d e d i c a t i o n i s proposed as the n o r t h h a l f of 

Section 25. 

Q. So t h a t o r i e n t a t i o n and s i z e would be the same? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Was there an operating agreement t h a t committed 

the p a r t i e s on a c o n t r a c t u a l basis f o r p r o d u c t i o n i n t h i s 

w e l l b o r e from the Mancos formation? 

A. Yes, there i s . 

Q. Under t h a t operating agreement, i s Southland 

Royalty Company l i m i t e d t o the c o n t r a c t area being the 

Mancos formation? 

A. The o r i g i n a l operating agreement covered the 

Mancos-Dakota formations only. 

Q. I f the w e l l i s recompleted i n the Mesaverde, w i l l 

you have a c o n t r a c t t h a t covers the i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. No, not at t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Have you proposed t o a l l i n t e r e s t owners i n the 

e x i s t i n g w e l l the recompletion of the well? 

A. Yes, i n our j o i n d e r l e t t e r which was sent out i n 

J u l y , we proposed t o plug the Mancos and recomplete the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Mesaverde and requested t o amend the o r i g i n a l o p e r a t i n g 

agreement t o cover the Mesaverde formation. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I s there a t a b l e or a summary by 

which the Examiner can see the various i n t e r e s t owners and 

t h e i r percentages i n the proposed spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, there i s , under E x h i b i t 3 — 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r , i f we go t o the f i r s t t a b under 

E x h i b i t 3 — 

A. — i s a breakout of the working i n t e r e s t owners 

w i t h t h e i r percentages. 

Q. Did you prepare t h a t or have i t prepared under 

your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you s a t i s f i e d y o u r s e l f t h a t i t ' s c o r r e c t and 

accurate, Mr. Van Goebel? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Based upon your work, do you have opinions w i t h 

regards t o the necessity a t t h i s time of a compulsory 

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I f e e l we need one. 

MR. KELLAHIN: At t h i s time, Mr. Examiner, we 

tender Mr. Van Goebel as an expert petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objections? 

MR. BRUCE: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Van Goebel i s so 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

11 

q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Let's t a l k i n a summary 

f a s h i o n about the sequence of your e f f o r t s . 

Approximately when d i d the Bureau of Land 

Management issue t o Southland a n o t i c e t h a t t h i s w e l l 

e i t h e r had t o be r e s t o r e d t o production i n some other 

f o r m a t i o n or plugged and abandoned? 

A. During 1994 we received a l e t t e r from the Bureau 

of Land Management, i n d i c a t i n g they f e l t i t was no longer 

economic and t h a t they requested our procedure f o r plugging 

and abandonment. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Have you, w i t h the a i d of your 

t e c h n i c a l employees f o r your company, made a d e t e r m i n a t i o n 

as t o whether t h i s wellbore could be u s e f u l i n any other 

formation? 

A. Yes, our g e o l o g i s t s and engineers examined the 

w e l l b o r e and geology and f e e l t h a t the Mesaverde 

recompletion attempt could be made. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . As a r e s u l t of t h e i r recommendations, 

then, have you gone forward w i t h your e f f o r t s t o 

c o n s o l i d a t e these i n t e r e s t owners f o r p r o d u c t i o n on a 

v o l u n t a r y basis out of the Mesaverde? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i s the ownership of the wellbore i t s e l f ? 

A. The ownership under the w e l l b o r e , the p a r t i e s 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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t h a t are i n the Mancos Dakota are also the same working 

i n t e r e s t owners i n the Mesaverde. 

Q. I n terms of your o f f e r t o those p a r t i e s t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n the recompletion of the w e l l i n the 

Mesaverde, i s th e r e t o be any charge t o those i n t e r e s t 

owners f o r the cost of the e x i s t i n g w e l l ? 

A. No, we a l l paid f o r i t when i t was o r i g i n a l l y 

d r i l l e d . 

Q. And so the proposal t o them i s t o pay t h e i r 

p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of plugging out of the Mancos and then 

the cost of the recompletion and attempt t o o b t a i n 

p r o d u c t i o n out of the Mesaverde? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When we look a t the summary sheet f o r E x h i b i t 

Number 3, go down the sheet and summarize f o r us what i s 

the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of a l l these p a r t i e s . 

A. Okay. Number one i s Meridian/Southland. 

Southland Royalty Company has a 50-percent i n t e r e s t i n the 

d r i l l block, Meridian has a 12-1/2-percent i n t e r e s t . 

Q. I f we go over t o the f a r r i g h t column, does t h a t 

show the s t a t u s as best you understand i t t o be of t h e i r 

approval or responses as of the date of the hearing today? 

A. Yes, under the approval column I've i n d i c a t e d the 

responses I've received. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t , can you approximate f o r t he 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Examiner the outstanding percentage as a t o t a l of those 

i n t e r e s t owners t h a t are not committed t o the recompletion? 

A. Okay, a t t h i s p o i n t 74 percent have i n d i c a t e d 

they want t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the p r o j e c t , t h r e e percent have 

i n d i c a t e d they w i l l e l e c t t o go nonconsent — t h a t would be 

number 11 and 12 — and 2 3 percent have i n d i c a t e d no 

response as t o t h e i r e l e c t i o n s i n the recompletion. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's go t o the i n i t i a l proposal i n 

w r i t i n g t o these i n t e r e s t owners. I f y o u ' l l t u r n back t o 

E x h i b i t Tab Number 2, l e t ' s look a t your l e t t e r of J u l y 

17th, 1995. 

I s t h i s , i n f a c t , your f i r s t w r i t t e n proposal t o 

these p a r t i e s w i t h a s p e c i f i c proposal f o r the recompletion 

of the subject well? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i f any response d i d you have t o your l e t t e r ? 

A. S h o r t l y a f t e r the l e t t e r went out, many of the 

working i n t e r e s t owners responded i n w r i t i n g t h a t p r i o r t o 

t h e i r e v a l u a t i o n of the recompletion they wanted t o 

i n i t i a t e gas balancing, cash out on the gas balancing f o r 

the Mancos formation. 

Q. Describe f o r the Examiner the process t h a t 

Southland Royalty u t i l i z e s f o r gas balancing w i t h regards 

t o the Mancos i n t h i s w e l l or, i n f a c t , any other w e l l . 

How i s t h a t done? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Okay, under the operating agreement, which i s 

under E x h i b i t 4, there's a gas balancing agreement, which 

deals w i t h p a r t i e s t h a t are overproduced or underproduced. 

And a t the time a w e l l i s determined t o be permanently no 

longer p r o d u c t i v e , those p a r t i e s t h a t are underproduced can 

request t o be cash - s e t t l e d f o r the gas t h a t they d i d not 

s e l l . 

Q. At what p o i n t i n time does t h a t process — i s 

t h a t i n i t i a t e d ? 

A. At the time the w e l l i s going t o be plugged. 

Q. Have you advised a l l these p a r t i e s t h a t have not 

committed t h e i r i n t e r e s t s t h a t Southland Royalty's p r a c t i c e 

under t h i s agreement i s t o i n i t i a t e gas balancing a f t e r the 

w e l l has been plugged out of the Mancos? 

A. Yes, they're aware of t h a t . 

Q. What then happened a f t e r the J u l y 17th l e t t e r ? 

Give us a general summary of the sequence of the e f f o r t s . 

A. Okay, a f t e r the J u l y 17th l e t t e r , and then upon 

r e c e i p t of t h e i r request f o r gas balancing, I sent a memo 

t o our department i n Fort Worth, Texas, t h a t handles gas 

balancing t o i n i t i a t e t h a t procedure. 

I n the mid p a r t of October, they sent out a 

l e t t e r t o a l l the working i n t e r e s t owners p r o v i d i n g 

schedules of the volume so l d , along w i t h a schedule showing 

Southland's overproduced p o s i t i o n , along w i t h the volumes 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

15 

and the pricing. 

Q. Have you received any responses from the p a r t i e s 

t o be pooled a t t h i s p o i n t w i t h regards t o t h a t issue? 

A. On the gas balancing issue, I've been advised by 

our balancing department t h a t they have received responses 

from some of the p a r t i e s . 

Q. What's the process, Mr. Van Goebel? I s t h a t t o 

take place independently, then, of your e f f o r t s t o 

co n s o l i d a t e the i n t e r e s t owners f o r the recompletion and 

p o s s i b l e production out of the Mesaverde? 

A. Yeah, t h a t would be a side issue, not r e l a t e d t o 

t h i s proposal. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t you do not, then, have a f u l l y 

committed agreement by a l l i n t e r e s t owners f o r p r o d u c t i o n 

out of the Mesaverde? 

A. No. 

Q. Have you o f f e r e d t o them amendments t o the 

e x i s t i n g o p erating agreement by which t h a t could take place 

on a c o n t r a c t u a l basis? 

A. Under the J u l y 17th l e t t e r , the i n i t i a l proposal 

l e t t e r i n d i c a t e d t h a t we would l i k e t o amend the e x i s t i n g 

o p e r a t i n g agreements since a l l the p a r t i e s were already 

j o i n e d under t h a t agreement, and upon t h e i r approval, then, 

we would send t o each owner a r e v i s e d E x h i b i t A covering 

the Mesaverde formation. 
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Q. After the July 17th letter, did you follow up 

w i t h a d d i t i o n a l l e t t e r s t o a l l these p a r t i e s ? 

A. Yes, when they s t a r t e d the gas balancing, I sent 

a l e t t e r i n d i c a t i n g t h a t our gas balancing department had 

s t a r t e d t h a t procedure, and again requested t h a t they 

evaluate the proposal f o r the recompletion. 

Q. Have you received any o b j e c t i o n from these 

i n t e r e s t owners as t o having Southwest — Southland Royalty 

Company act as operator f o r the recompletion? 

A. No, not a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Have you received any o b j e c t i o n t o the proposed 

AFE? 

A. We received one comment from the Ramona B. Sweet 

Tr u s t , i n d i c a t i n g they had concerns about the cost. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And have you responded t o them w i t h 

regards t o t h a t concern? 

A. They i n t h e i r l e t t e r had a question on the cost 

and wanted a copy of the operating agreements, al s o the BLM 

demand l e t t e r , and wanted t o know the salvage value and 

pluggin g costs, and we responded t o t h a t l e t t e r . 

Q. Have you responded t o a l l the requests t h a t 

you've received from these i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have a recommendation t o the Examiner as 

t o how t o handle the overhead r a t e s under a compulsory 
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p o o l i n g order t o be issued t o cover the Mesaverde p o r t i o n 

of t h i s process? 

A. Since we would l i k e t o attempt t o amend the 

e x i s t i n g o p erating agreement under the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

compulsory p o o l i n g , we have i n d i c a t e d the overhead r a t e s we 

request. We requested $49 50 per month d r i l l i n g r a t e , 

$494.98 per month f o r overhead opera t i n g . 

Q. How d i d Southland Royalty a r r i v e a t t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r number? 

A. Under the 1985 operating agreement under the 

COPAS attached t o t h a t agreement, op e r a t i n g agreement, the 

o r i g i n a l overhead r a t e f o r d r i l l i n g was $3500 and was $350 

f o r the producing. 

Q. So you have escalated the o r i g i n a l COPAS numbers, 

and i f they're escalated pursuant t o the schedule y o u ' l l 

get what you have j u s t recommended t o the Examiner as the 

r a t e t o put i n the p o o l i n g order? 

A. Yes, under the COPAS agreement every A p r i l 1st 

there's an adjustment on the overhead r a t e s , and t h i s i s 

the adjustment under those schedules. 

Q. So t h a t the r a t e i s the same f o r those p a r t i e s 

under the amended agreement as w e l l as under a p o o l i n g 

order, do you recommend t o the Examiner t h a t t h e r e be a 

COPAS adjustment set f o r t h i n the p o o l i n g order whereby the 

numbers can t r a c k — 
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A. Yes. 

Q. — and be the same, f o r e i t h e r nonconsenting 

p o o l i n g order p a r t i e s — 

A. Yes, and f o r the consenting. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I n a d d i t i o n , you're d e a l i n g w i t h 

f e d e r a l o i l and gas leases w i t h i n t h i s spacing u n i t . 

A. Yes, the n o r t h h a l f , i f we look a t — Under 

E x h i b i t 3, t h e r e i s a land p l a t , the l a s t page, t h i r d page, 

showing the d r i l l block n o r t h h a l f of Section 25. I t ' s 

comprised of three f e d e r a l leases. I n the northeast 

q u a r t e r , i n d i c a t e s the working i n t e r e s t owner percentage. 

Southland Royalty has 100 percent. I n the northwest 

q u a r t e r you see there's two f e d e r a l leases, and I've 

i n d i c a t e d the ownership under each f e d e r a l lease. 

Q. I n order t o comply w i t h Bureau of Land Management 

p r a c t i c e , under a New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n 

compulsory p o o l i n g order, are you requesting t h a t the 

D i v i s i o n i nclude i n t h i s p o o l i n g order an o r d e r i n g 

paragraph t h a t pools a l l mineral i n t e r e s t owners, whoever 

they may be, i n c l u d i n g record t i t l e ownership? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what's the purpose of t h a t ? 

A. Since we have a number of f e d e r a l leases, we w i l l 

have t o enter i n t o a communitization agreement, which w i l l 

be executed by the record t i t l e owner, as w e l l as by the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

19 

working i n t e r e s t owners. 

Q. And i f those record t i t l e i n t e r e s t owners f a i l t o 

execute the communitization agreement, i f t h e i r i n t e r e s t i s 

s p e c i f i c a l l y included i n the p o o l i n g order, then the Bureau 

of Land Management w i l l allow the p o o l i n g order t o 

s u b s t i t u t e f o r those signatures? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When we look a t the i n f o r m a t i o n t a b u l a t e d j u s t i n 

f r o n t of t h i s land p l a t , does t h a t show the recor d t i t l e 

ownership? 

A. Yes, t h i s schedule i n d i c a t e s the working i n t e r e s t 

owners and the record t i t l e owners found i n the d r i l l 

b lock. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . Attached t o your J u l y 17th, 

1995, l e t t e r , d i d you also submit t o these v a r i o u s i n t e r e s t 

owners the itemized schedule f o r a u t h o r i t y f o r expenditure? 

A. Yes, as p a r t of the l e t t e r also i s enclosed the 

a u t h o r i t y f o r expenditure, along w i t h a we l l b o r e diagram 

and a p e r t i n e n t data sheet on the w e l l . 

Q. And then i f we t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 4, 

what do we f i n d a t t h a t p o i n t i n the e x h i b i t book? 

A. Under Tab 4 i s the operating agreement dated May 

10th, 1985, which covered the Dakota and Mancos fo r m a t i o n . 

Q. And Southland would propose t o operate t h i s w e l l 

pursuant t o t h i s agreement as t o those v o l u n t a r y i n t e r e s t 
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owners; 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you would use i t as a means of o p e r a t i n g 

under a p o o l i n g order, would you not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t , Mr. Van Goebel, do you have an 

op i n i o n as t o whether or not you've exhausted a l l 

reasonable g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t s t o o b t a i n j o i n d e r by a l l 

these i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what i s your opinion? 

A. I f e e l t h a t we have made an attempt f o r the 

i n t e r e s t owners t o make an e v a l u a t i o n of the recompletion, 

but up t o t h i s p o i n t I f e e l t h a t there's other issues t h a t 

they're concerned about, and they have not or w i l l not make 

an e l e c t i o n as t o the Mesaverde. 

Those p a r t i e s t h a t have evaluated, based on the 

recompletion, m e r i t s have e i t h e r e l e c t e d t o p a r t i c i p a t e or 

go nonconsent. 

Q. With respect t o those p a r t i e s t h a t are r a i s i n g 

issues concerning gas balancing as t o pro d u c t i o n from the 

Mancos forma t i o n , i n your opinion do they appear t o be 

knowledgeable about t h a t process? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you de a l i n g w i t h knowledgeable people t h a t 
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have i n t e r e s t i n t h i s w e l l , as other wells? 

A. Yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Van Goebel. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s 1 through 4. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Are the r e any obje c t i o n s ? 

MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 1 through 4 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Mr. Bruce? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. When d i d t h i s w e l l l a s t produce from the Mancos 

and/or Dakota? 

A. I bel i e v e i t was back i n the e a r l y 1990s. 

Q. Lik e 1990 or 1991, something l i k e t h a t ? 

A. I n t h a t area, 1993. 

Q. Okay. And i t was not u n t i l — what? Late 1995 

t h a t you got i n t o — decided t o go a f t e r gas balancing, 

cash balance the p a r t i e s ? 

A. We had attempted t o do various t h i n g s w i t h the 

w e l l t o get i t t o produce. 

At one p o i n t we had t r i e d t o s e l l the w e l l . We 

put i t up f o r auction. I t d i d not s e l l a t the a u c t i o n , so 
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i t came back t o us. 

And then we had a new g e o l o g i s t come i n and s t a r t 

working the area and he s t a r t e d l o o k i n g a t the Mesaverde 

and re-looked a t t h i s wellbore f o r a p o s s i b l e recompletion 

t o t he Mesaverde. 

Q. Now, was gas balancing done a t Meridian's 

i n s t i g a t i o n or a t the i n s t i g a t i o n of my c l i e n t s ? 

A. We would i n i t i a t e the gas balancing when i t was 

determined t h a t the Mancos should be plugged. However, we 

d i d r e c e i v e l e t t e r s when we proposed the recompletion, 

which d i d act as a c a t a l y s t . 

Q. One f i n a l question on t h a t . Does the gas-

balancing agreement provide f o r any i n t e r e s t on the cash i n 

the — 

A. No. 

Q. Now, you mentioned the overhead r a t e s . What were 

the o p e r a t i n g rates? Four-hundred-and-some d o l l a r s ? 

A. Under — You mean the one we want t o amend to? 

Q. Yes, the one you're requesting i n the proposal, 

the A p p l i c a t i o n . 

A. Okay, under the f i r s t tab on the l a s t page of the 

A p p l i c a t i o n , under Number 4 i s the overhead r a t e s we're 

req u e s t i n g . 

Q. Are these the ra t e s set out i n E rns t and Whinney? 

A. They're the ra t e s t h a t our accounting group would 
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go by under the COPAS agreements. 

Q. How do they compare t o the E rns t and Whinney 

rates? 

A. I don't have those r a t e s . They're i n the 

b a l l p a r k f o r the San Juan Basin f o r what are being used by 

other operators. 

Q. But you don't have any idea what the E r n s t and 

Whinney r a t e s are f o r a w e l l of t h i s depth i n the San Juan 

Basin? 

A. For the San Juan Basin, these would probably f a l l 

w i t h i n those ranges. 

Q. What ranges? 

A. Between $4000 — around $4000 f o r d r i l l i n g , $400 

f o r producing. 

Q. Okay. So you're saying $4000 and $400 are 

probably what Erns t and Whinney — 

A. No, I'm saying t h a t t h a t i s the range, the 

b a l l p a r k , t h a t I'm saying t h a t these i n d i c a t e d here are 

w i t h i n the f a i r range t h a t they would show on t h e i r 

schedules. 

Q. Ge t t i n g back t o the gas balancing, I j u s t want t o 

make sure of one p o i n t . Even i f t h i s w e l l i s recompleted, 

Meridian i s going ahead w i t h the cash balancing? 

A. Yes, when we plug the Mancos, then t h a t account 

w i l l be closed and cash settlement w i l l occur. 
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Q. Okay. Now, your E x h i b i t 2 you have your i n i t i a l 

proposal l e t t e r regarding recompletion. I s t h i s t he only 

l e t t e r you sent out making an o f f e r t o p a r t i e s t o j o i n in? 

A. No, there are other l e t t e r s t h a t were sent out. 

I n August a l e t t e r was sent out i n d i c a t i n g t h a t we would 

i n i t i a t e the gas balancing. 

Q. But t h a t doesn't have t o do w i t h — 

A. And then i n November, again, l e t t e r s were sent 

out i n d i c a t i n g t h a t the statements have been sent out w i t h 

gas balancing, and we have requested again f o r them t o r e ­

evaluate the recompletion. 

Q. Okay. But r e a l l y those l e t t e r s don't have 

s t r i c t l y t o do w i t h an o f f e r ; they have more t o do w i t h gas 

balancing? 

A. No, the l e t t e r s t h a t were sent out i n d i c a t e d t h a t 

gas balancing had been i n i t i a t e d , and so i t was a request, 

i n essence, t o say, l e t ' s set t h a t t o the side , please 

evaluate the recompletion and l e t us know your e l e c t i o n . 

Q. Did Meridian a t any time make any o f f e r s t o 

purchase or ob t a i n farmouts from the nonconsenting p a r t i e s ? 

A. We received a c a l l from Christopher P h i l l i p s , who 

i n d i c a t e d he might be i n t e r e s t e d i n s e l l i n g h i s i n t e r e s t . 

I turned t h a t over t o our a c q u i s i t i o n s group f o r 

e v a l u a t i o n . 

Also, we received a l e t t e r from Ramona B. Sweet, 
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i n d i c a t i n g t h a t they would not contest the f o r c e p o o l i n g i f 

we e i t h e r gave them a per-acre bonus w i t h an o v e r r i d e , a 

150-acre, per-acre, d o l l a r amount, plus a 6.25-percent 

o v e r r i d e , or i f we j u s t gave them a f l a t 12.5 percent 

o v e r r i d e . 

We evaluated t h a t and wrote back a l e t t e r t o them 

i n d i c a t i n g we declined, and requested again t h a t they 

evaluate the recompletion. 

Q. Did you ever make a c o u n t e r o f f e r ? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever respond i n w r i t i n g t o Mr. P h i l l i p s ' 

request? 

A. No, we only had telephone conversations. And the 

a c q u i s i t i o n s department, I be l i e v e — I would have t o 

con f i r m t h i s — I believe they d i d contact him by 

telephone. 

Q. Looking at your E x h i b i t 3, the l a s t page of i t , 

s i r , could an e a s t - h a l f u n i t be formed f o r t h i s w e l l ? 

A. Yes, we could have formed an e a s t - h a l f , but we 

had the e x i s t i n g n o r t h h a l f w i t h the p a r t i e s already i n 

place, so we — 

Q. Who owns the southeast q u a r t e r as t o the 

Mesaverde, the operating r i g h t s ? 

A. There's another — we do not own anything i n the 

south h a l f . I would have t o review my notes, get the 
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ownership f o r you f o r the south h a l f . 

Q. Who markets Southland Royalty's and Meridian's 

gas f o r t h i s well? 

A. Meridian does. 

Q. Meridian does? I f any of my c l i e n t s j o i n i n the 

w e l l , i s Meridian prepared t o commit t o marketing t h e i r 

share of gas on the same terms and on the same basis t h a t 

Meridian and Southland market t h e i r gas? 

A. Meridian's marketing group r e c e n t l y sent out a 

l e t t e r t o a l l working i n t e r e s t owners, i n d i c a t i n g they 

would no longer market t h i r d - p a r t y gas. 

Q. And why i s that? 

A. I t seems l i k e many times t h e r e are unhappy 

people, no matter what market c o n d i t i o n s are, t h e y ' r e 

unhappy and they're b i c k e r i n g , and so i t was decided t h a t 

we would no longer market the gas. 

Q. Does Meridian or Southland have any gas marketing 

s u b s i d i a r i e s ? 

A. No, I don't believe so. 

Q. One f i n a l t h i n g . I f water i s produced from t h a t 

w e l l , do you know how t h a t w i l l be disposed of? 

A. You would have t o address t h a t question t o my 

engineer or g e o l o g i s t . 

MR. BRUCE: I have no f u r t h e r questions, Mr. 

Examiner. 
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EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Bruce. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , any r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. I n your E x h i b i t Number 2 — That's the J u l y 17th 

l e t t e r , but you said there were two other l e t t e r s sent out 

subsequent t o Jul y 17th? 

A. Yes, there was other l e t t e r s t h a t have not been 

put i n the e x h i b i t book. 

Q. And why weren't they included i n the e x h i b i t 

book? 

A. We j u s t put the j o i n d e r l e t t e r i n . I could b r i n g 

you the other l e t t e r s i f you want. We have copies of 

those. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , I t h i n k i t would 

be p r e t t y good t o — We d i d cover those s u b s t a n t i a l l y i n 

the examination, cross-examination. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , we have them a v a i l a b l e . 

I f you would l i k e t o cover them now, we've got some. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l , do you have the r e s t of these? 

THE WITNESS: They're i n the — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Have you got the r e s t of these? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: So you have handed me two 
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sheets of paper, one dated November 7t h , and the other 

dated November 28th? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, Mr. Examiner. I'm also 

handing Mr. Bruce a copy of those same l e t t e r s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I propose we j u s t supplement 

E x h i b i t Number 2, unless you have — 

MR. KELLAHIN: We might j u s t i n s e r t these i n the 

e x h i b i t book as a supplement t o E x h i b i t 2. We appreciate 

t h a t . 

Q. (By Examiner Stogner) Okay. Now, was t h i s a l l 

the w r i t t e n correspondence, Mr. Goebel? 

A. There was a d d i t i o n a l correspondence where Ramona 

B. Sweet requested a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n wanting copies of 

the o p e r a t i n g agreement, copies of the BLM l e t t e r , and the 

request f o r the salvage value, which we again responded t o 

and sent her the i n f o r m a t i o n she requested. 

Q. But t h a t was j u s t correspondence when Meridian 

and t h a t end of the --

A. Yes. 

Q. And now — But these are the t h r e e 

correspondences t h a t went out t o a l l p a r t i e s ? 

A. Yes, and then of course i n the middle of October 

would have been the l e t t e r s t h a t went out from our gas 

balancing department on t h e i r request f o r balancing. 

And I d i d send out a l e t t e r which — back i n 
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August 25th, j u s t i n d i c a t i n g t h a t we had received t h e i r 

request f o r balancing and t h a t i t had been forwarded t o our 

gas balancing department. 

Q. Okay. Again, who requested the balancing? 

A. The owners t h a t are c o n t e s t i n g us here would be 

the m a j o r i t y of the owners t h a t are requ e s t i n g balancing. 

Q. Okay. So not a l l p a r t i e s requested, but — 

A. — but i t would be i n i t i a t e d , because the w e l l — 

the Mancos formation was going t o be plugged. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I have no other questions of 

Mr. Goebel a t t h i s time. 

You may be excused — Oh, I'm s o r r y , Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Just one question. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. B a s i c a l l y , i t was the p a r t i e s who were 

underproduced who requested balancing; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I assume those were the — Yeah, those would be 

the p a r t i e s t h a t were i n t e r e s t e d , yes. 

Q. And no payments have been made yet? 

A. No, the procedure they used, from what they t o l d 

me, i s t h a t they send out the schedules t o a l l the working 

i n t e r e s t owners and ask them t o review the volumes and the 

money amounts shown, and t h a t they request everybody come 

i n t o a consensus and show t h a t they're i n agreement before 
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any checks are w r i t t e n or cash disbursed. This i s t o avoid 

any f u t u r e problems, h o p e f u l l y . 

MR. BRUCE: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Kell a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I only o f f e r t o comment on t h i s 

issue i f there's any confusion by the D i v i s i o n as t o what I 

have recommended t o Southland, and t h a t i s w h i l e these 

group of p a r t i e s have other issues w i t h Southland, the 

issue we're focusing here i s the f o r c e - p o o l i n g case. 

The p r a c t i c e under t h i s o p e r a t i n g agreement, and 

i n f a c t most gas balancing arrangements, i s t o i n i t i a t e gas 

balancing when you plug out of a formation. And when the 

w e l l i s plugged out of the Mancos, then t h a t w i l l t r i g g e r 

gas balancing, and i t ' s a set of issues t h a t these p a r t i e s 

need t o resolve outside of the D i v i s i o n ' s j u r i s d i c t i o n . 

Because the operating agreement d e a l t only w i t h 

the Mancos, and there i s an i n a b i l i t y t o have an agreement 

on the Mesaverde, we would l i k e your assistance i n i s s u i n g 

a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order t o cover the Mesaverde. I have 

recommended t o Southland t h a t they not i n c l u d e a l l the 

paperwork t h a t d e a l t w i t h these other issues. 

I f you would l i k e t o see a l l t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n , 

I'm more than happy t o supply i t t o you. We d i d not 

be l i e v e i t would be r e l e v a n t t o your understanding and 

a b i l i t y t o issue a po o l i n g case. I f you would l i k e t o see 
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i t , I'm more than happy t o give i t t o you. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I don't t h i n k t h a t w i l l be 

necessary a t t h i s time. 

Any other questions of t h i s witness before we 

move on? 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: We would l i k e t o c a l l Mr. B i l l 

Hobbs a t t h i s p o i n t . Mr. Hobbs i s a petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 

He r esides i n Farmington, New Mexico. 

BILL HOBBS. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Hobbs, f o r the record would you please s t a t e 

your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s B i l l Hobbs. I'm a p r o f e s s i o n a l 

g e o l o g i s t , working f o r Meridian i n Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. Mr. Hobbs, you have t o speak up. There's a hum 

of the fan t h a t makes i t hard f o r a t l e a s t me t o hear you. 

On p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d before the 

D i v i s i o n and q u a l i f i e d as an expert i n matters of geology? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Are you p a r t of the t e c h n i c a l team appearing on 

behalf of Southland Royalty Company and your involvement i s 

STEVEN T. 
(505) 

BRENNER, CCR 
989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

32 

the geologic p a r t of the team? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Does your team have the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r 

e v a l u a t i n g the H i l l Federal Well 2Y t o determine whether or 

not you have any f u r t h e r o p p o r t u n i t i e s f o r p r o d u c t i o n out 

of the Mancos formation? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n , have you undertaken the personal 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o see i f t h i s wellbore can be u t i l i z e d i n 

any other formation? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And based upon t h a t t e c h n i c a l study, do you now 

have c e r t a i n conclusions? 

A. Yes, I do. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Hobbs as an expert 

petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objections? 

MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: He i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Mr. Hobbs, give us a quick 

summary of where you stand w i t h t h i s w e llbore i n terms of 

any f u r t h e r p o t e n t i a l production out of the Mancos 

for m a t i o n . 

A. The Mancos formation i s a f r a c t u r e d shale 

producing zone. I t ' s a p r e t t y good producing zone; i t i s 
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p a r t of the Basin. 

B a s i c a l l y on open-hole logs the Mancos, a t l e a s t 

i n Meridian's shop, d e f i e s any r e a l l o g a n a l y s i s . But 

based on the production pressure data, what we can glean 

from the logs, we see no a d d i t i o n a l p o t e n t i a l i n t h i s 

w e l l b o r e i n the Mancos-Dakota formations. 

Q. Do you see another use f o r t h i s wellbore? 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. And i n what formation do you see t h a t use? 

A. We see some p r e t t y good recompletion p o t e n t i a l i n 

the Mesaverde formation, which i s above the e x i s t i n g 

p e r f o r a t i o n s i n the Mancos. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t a l k about the Mesaverde then. 

I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the e x h i b i t book and look behind E x h i b i t 

Tab Number 5, do a l l these geologic d i s p l a y s t h a t we're 

about t o discuss represent your work product? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's s t a r t w i t h the o r i e n t a t i o n map, then, i f 

y o u ' l l look a t E x h i b i t Tab 5 and t u r n t o the f i r s t d i s p l a y , 

i d e n t i f y and describe approximately where we are i n the 

Basin when we look f o r the H i l l Federal 2Y w e l l . 

A. The l a r g e r dark o u t l i n e on t h i s map i s the 

o u t l i n e of the Mesaverde outcrop, which b a s i c a l l y helps 

d e f i n e the o u t l i n e of the San Juan Basin. 

The darker o u t l i n e w i t h i n the Mesaverde outcrop 
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shows the main areas of Mesaverde produ c t i o n w i t h i n t he San 

Juan Basin. 

Down t o the southeast, j u s t northeast of a l i t t l e 

box t h e r e , which i s the L i n d r i t h U n i t , we showed a l a r g e r -

t han-scale-size dot i n d i c a t i n g the i n d i c a t i o n of the H i l l 

Federal Number 2Y w e l l l o c a t i o n and where t h a t l i e s i n 

respect t o known commercial production from the Mesaverde 

fo r m a t i o n . 

Q. The issue I would l i k e you t o address i s the 

t o p i c of the appropriate percentage r i s k f a c t o r p e n a l t y — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — t o be applied i n t h i s p o o l i n g case. Are you 

aware of the maximum penalty the D i v i s i o n awards i n f o r c e -

p o o l i n g cases? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Cost plus 200 percent, i s t h a t f a m i l i a r t o you? 

A. Right. 

Q. I n terms of t h a t percentage, do you have an 

op i n i o n as t o the r i s k t o assign t o the recompletion of 

t h i s w e l l i n the Mesaverde? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And what i s t h a t opinion? 

A. Based on the geology of the surrounding area and 

the geology i n t h i s wellbore, I f e e l t h a t the r i s k could 

even exceed the 2 00-percent allowable. However, based on 
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the — what the Commission does, we are req u e s t i n g t he 

maximum 200-percent allowable. 

Q. When we look a t the Mesaverde, where are we w i t h 

t h i s w e llbore i n r e l a t i o n t o where we would f i n d 

c onventional Mesaverde production t h a t would be p r o f i t a b l e 

t o Meridian, Southland Royalty or any other operator? Are 

we w i t h i n t h a t area? 

A. No, we're outside of t h a t area, r e f e r r i n g back t o 

t h i s f i r s t e x h i b i t t h a t we looked a t . We're on the order 

of — I t looks l i k e the scale of t h i s map i s about one inch 

equals 18 miles. We're on the order of seven t o e i g h t 

miles southeast of what Meridian would deem t o be 

commercial production from the Mesaverde f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. From a geologic p o i n t of view, could you as a 

g e o l o g i s t j u s t i f y a w e l l i n the Mesaverde i n t h i s spacing 

u n i t i f i t was t o be a n e w - d r i l l stand-alone Mesaverde 

w e l l ? 

A. Based on the r i s k and applying t h a t r i s k t o 

economics, Meridian could not, w i t h the geology and reserve 

a n a l y s i s t h a t we've done on t h i s w e l l — we could not 

j u s t i f y t o our management d r i l l i n g a w e l l a t t h i s l o c a t i o n . 

Q. What i n your opini o n i s the only method by which 

you would have an o p p o r t u n i t y t o produce Mesaverde gas out 

of t h i s w e l l b o r e , i f i t i n f a c t i s productive? 

A. I t would be a recompletion i n t h i s w e l l , which 
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also we are proposing so t h a t we don't waste the resource. 

We do have a wellbore we have something we need t o do w i t h , 

and we — i n s p i t e of the r i s k t h a t we've put on the w e l l , 

t h a t a p p l i e s t o geology, we t h i n k i t warrants a t t e m p t i n g a 

recompletion attempt i n t h i s wellbore. 

Q. Let's see i f we can e s t a b l i s h f o r the D i v i s i o n 

the nearest Mesaverde production i n t h i s area. 

I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the next p l a t , l e t ' s look a t 

t h a t . I t says the "Mesaverde Cumulative Production". Are 

you w i t h me? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n the caption p o r t i o n of t h a t — This i s simply 

a map t o show a l i n e of cross-section and then g i v e you 

some values. I t i s not a t r u e isopach, i s i t , s i r ? 

A. No, I gave t h i s t o my g e o l o g i c a l t e c h n i c i a n , 

whose name i s also on t h i s map down t h e r e , Sharon Nez. I 

gave her the i n f o r m a t i o n , we p u l l e d the basic i n f o r m a t i o n 

out of Petroleum I n f o r m a t i o n and put i t i n t o our computer 

w i t h the idea t h a t we would make an isopach map of 

Mesaverde cumulative production, and t h i s map i s going t o 

be contoured on a 250 m i l l i o n contour i n t e r v a l , and the 

p o i n t of t h i s map i s w i t h i n t h i s f o u r - s e c t i o n area. 

The w e l l i n question, the H i l l 2Y, by the way, i s 

down here i n the northeast of Section 25, i s t h a t the most 

Mesaverde production i n t h i s f o u r - s e c t i o n area, i s the w e l l 
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i n t he southeast of 26, which has only made 50 m i l l i o n 

cubic f e e t of gas. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s look a t t h i s , then. I f we go 

from A', which i s the subject w e l l — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — move through the l i n e of c r o s s - s e c t i o n on the 

p l a t , the w e l l i n 26 cum'd how much gas out of the 

Mesaverde? 

A. F i f t y m i l l i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The next nearest w e l l i n t h i s area 

t h a t produced Mesaverde gas i s found where, s i r ? 

A. That would be up a t the A end of the cross-

s e c t i o n , northwest end i n Section 23, i n the northwest 

q u a r t e r . 

That w e l l , the Number 1 Gavilan-Howard, was 

p e r f o r a t e d i n the Point Lookout and Lower Menefee, and i t ' s 

produced a h a l f a m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of gas and has been 

a c t i v e f o r a t l e a s t two years. 

Q. I s there any other w e l l s w i t h i n t h i s f o u r - s e c t i o n 

area t h a t was — f o r which Mesaverde gas p r o d u c t i o n was 

attempted? 

A. Yes, f o r some reason the computer map doesn't 

show the Mesaverde completion. 

There i s a w e l l i n the northeast of Section 23, 

very near t h a t 23-1 Fee C w e l l . This w e l l was d r i l l e d 
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p r i m a r i l y t o the Mesaverde, f o r Mesaverde p r o d u c t i o n . That 

w e l l was — a completion attempt was made i n the Po i n t 

Lookout. This was i n 1989. The w e l l t e s t e d 300 MCF a day 

and 9 3 b a r r e l s of water a day and has never produced, 

according t o our records. 

Q. I s the r i s k diminished below the maximum pen a l t y 

by p r o x i m i t y t o est a b l i s h e d production i n the Mesaverde? 

A. No, q u i t e the co n t r a r y , I t h i n k . Looking a t the 

r e s u l t s of the surrounding w e l l s , the r i s k i s a t l e a s t as 

hi g h i f not higher. 

Q. Has the r i s k been diminished by the f a c t t h a t you 

have a wellbore and a l o g a v a i l a b l e t h a t would show you 

Mesaverde formation? 

A. No. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the next d i s p l a y . You've 

i d e n t i f i e d t h i s as a gross clean Mesaverde isopach. You're 

l o o k i n g a t the tab behind E x h i b i t 5, and i t ' s the t h i r d 

sheet. Mr. Hobbs, are you not, s i r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You've put a value a t the H i l l 

Federal 2Y w e l l of 116 f e e t . What does t h a t mean? 

A. That means using a gamma ray l o g , which I f e e l 

there's some very p u z z l i n g l o g character i n a l l the w e l l s 

t h a t have penetrated the Mesaverde, p a r t i c u l a r l y i n t h i s 

township, I d i d want t o make one map t h a t would represent 
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t h a t t h e r e i s a t l e a s t clean r e s e r v o i r rock a v a i l a b l e i n 

Section 25. So t h i s represents the amount of clean sand i n 

the — i f you use j u s t s t r u c t u r a l l y the gamma-ray l o g — i n 

the Point Lookout, Menefee and C l i f f h o u s e members of the 

Mesaverde formation. 

Q. Does the f a c t t h a t there's an estimated 116 f e e t 

of gross clean Mesaverde sand d i m i n i s h the r i s k ? 

A. No, not a t a l l . 

Q. You've got t o do something else as a g e o l o g i s t , 

do you not? 

A. Right. 

Q. You've got t o determine t r u e net e f f e c t i v e pay 

out of the Mesaverde? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look t o see how d i f f i c u l t t h a t 

i s . I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the cross-s e c t i o n , Mr. Examiner, 

there's an envelope on the end of the e x h i b i t book. I f you 

p u l l t h a t out, w e ' l l look at Mr. Hobbs' c r o s s - s e c t i o n . 

A. This i s the t h r e e - w e l l c r o s s - s e c t i o n which was 

shown on the l o c a t o r map t h a t was the second map, the 

Mesaverde cumulative production map. 

The cross-section s t a r t s w i t h the Gavilan-Howard 

Number 1 w e l l i n Section 23, t o the northwest. Then i t 

goes through the Alex P h i l l i p s Gavilan Number 2 i n the 

southeast of Section 26. And the t h i r d w e l l on t h e r i g h t 
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i s the Southland Royalty H i l l Federal Number 2Y w e l l , w i t h 

the proposed p e r f o r a t i o n s i n the Mesaverde shown on the 

l e f t side of the depth t r a c k , where we would — This i s 

where we propose our Mesaverde recompletion attempt. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t the H i l l Federal l o g . 

Describe the q u a l i t y of t h i s data. 

A. As i s t y p i c a l of a number of w e l l s i n t h i s p a r t 

of the Basin, some of these w e l l s , and i n p a r t i c u l a r , the 

H i l l 2Y, these w e l l s were d r i l l e d — oftentimes they j u s t 

set surface casing, d r i l l e d a l l the way t o the Mancos, and 

i n the process created some p r e t t y badly washed out hole 

c o n d i t i o n s i n the Mesaverde formation. 

Subsequently, when open-hole logs were r u n , we 

f e e l t h a t p a r t of the d i f f i c u l t y i n determining what i s net 

e f f e c t i v e pay has been a f f e c t e d by the borehole washout 

e f f e c t s on open-hole logs. 

So i n some ways t h i s — the 2Y l o g i s t y p i c a l of 

w e l l s i n the area, and t h a t i t ' s not l i k e up i n the main 

producing t r e n d where you can look a t a l o g and you can see 

50 ohms r e s i s t i v i t y and 10 percent p o r o s i t y and you can 

look at a l o g from across the room and t e l l you you've got 

a f a i r amount of pay. 

Q. What do you assess t o be the o p p o r t u n i t y , then, 

i n the Mesaverde, and how do we i l l u s t r a t e t h a t t o the 

Examiner? 
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A. The o p p o r t u n i t y t h a t we see, again, i s 

demonstrated by where we have our proposed p e r f o r a t i o n s . 

We do show p e r f o r a t i o n s down through the Point Lookout 

fo r m a t i o n , and some i n the lowermost sand i n the C l i f f h o u s e 

f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. These would be the new proposed p e r f o r a t i o n s i n 

the Mesaverde p o r t i o n of t h i s wellbore? 

A. Yes. 

Q. These, i n f a c t , do not y e t e x i s t ? 

A. No, no, they do not. 

Q. I s i t reasonably probable t h a t you as a geologic 

expert can take t h i s l o g and come up w i t h an accurate net 

pay isopach by which a r e s e r v o i r engineer can make accurate 

c a l c u l a t i o n s of recoverable — I mean gas i n place, and 

thereby determine recoverable gas? 

A. With the c o n d i t i o n of these logs and some of the 

t h i n g s t h a t are going on g e o l o g i c a l l y i n t h i s p a r t of the 

Basin, I can give our engineer some r i s k e d net pay counts 

or estimates of pay w i t h ranges of water s a t u r a t i o n s . But 

u n l i k e i n the main p a r t of the Basin, we can p r e t t y w e l l 

pound our f i s t and say, This i s how much net pay t h e r e i s , 

t h i s i s what the volumetric reserves are going t o be. I t ' s 

very d i f f i c u l t t o do down here. 

Q. How does t h a t play a p a r t i n your conclusion 

about the 2 00 percent being the app r o p r i a t e p e n a l t y f a c t o r 
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i n terms of geologic r i s k ? 

A. Well, i t plays a p a r t i n — and I t h i n k t h i s 

c r o s s - s e c t i o n p o i n t s i t out — i n the other two w e l l s i n 

the c r o s s - s e c t i o n on the right-hand side of the depth 

t r a c k , I've i n d i c a t e d where those w e l l s have been 

p e r f o r a t e d , and I've shown down a t the bottom of the l o g 

p o r t i o n s of those w e l l s both the Mancos-Dakota cumulative 

p r o d u c t i o n h i s t o r y and how the Mesaverde was completed. 

Our l o g doesn't look too d i f f e r e n t from the logs 

of those two w e l l s , yet both of those w e l l s , by our 

standards, and apparently by t h e i r operators' standards, 

are noneconomic w e l l s . 

Therefore, the — We don't see t h a t having the 

w e l l data minimizes the r i s k , because p a r t of — The b i g 

problem i s , how much gas i s going t o come out and where i s 

a l l t h i s water coming from? And t h a t ' s where the logs 

a r e n ' t h e l p i n g us, by t e l l i n g us, avoid t h i s zone, 

p e r f o r a t e t h i s zone. 

Q. When you look a t the s t r u c t u r a l component i n t h i s 

area, does t h a t play a p a r t i n your decision? 

A. We don't b e l i e v e so. We have — The l a s t map 

under E x h i b i t 5 i s a s t r u c t u r e contour map, and we have 

made a s t r u c t u r e contour map through a l l these other w e l l s 

t h a t have had Mesaverde recompletion attempts made on them. 

As i n the other p a r t — the main p a r t of the 
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Basin, the Mesaverde has s t r a t i g r a p h i c a l l y trapped 

hydrocarbons i n i t , and we don't b e l i e v e t h a t s t r u c t u r e 

plays a r o l e i n t h a t . 

What t h i s map shows i s , we are s t a r t i n g t o get 

close t o the east side of the east f l a n k of the Basin, so 

we are seeing a component of west d i p a t t h i s l o c a t i o n , 

although i t ' s not very much. But we don't t h i n k s t r u c t u r e 

r e a l l y plays a p a r t i n the hydrocarbon t r a p p i n g here. 

Q. You mentioned the pos s i b l e r i s k of encountering 

water. Where would t h a t water be encountered? I n what 

p o r t i o n of the Mesaverde? 

A. Well, u n f o r t u n a t e l y t h a t ' s the $64,000 — or 

whatever the cost i s — question. We were t r y i n g t o look 

a t t h i s p a r t l y from a p r o c e s s - o f - e l i m i n a t i o n s t a n d p o i n t . 

Right now we're not sure whether the water t h a t 

these other w e l l s encountered i s not coming from the 

Menefee or from the Menefee coals. We haven't been p r i v y 

t o any of the other analyses or any of the other data t h a t 

those operators may have performed on the produced water. 

But a t t h i s p o i n t we're not sure, and we're — 

When we o r i g i n a l l y proposed the w e l l , we had a number of 

zones i n the Menefee t h a t we were going t o p e r f o r a t e . 

Our c u r r e n t p o s i t i o n a t the time of making t h i s 

c r o s s - s e c t i o n i s , p o s s i b l y t h a t water i s extraneous t o the 

C l i f f h o u s e and Point Lookout, and i f we can stay out of the 
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Menefee, we might e l i m i n a t e a l o t of t h a t water. 

But we can't t e l l t h a t from logs. We have t o 

surmise t h a t from some of the other operators' completion-

attempt h i s t o r i e s . 

Q. And t h a t ' s p a r t of the r i s k i n v o l v e d i n t h i s 

process? 

A. Absolutely. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t . That concludes my 

examination of Mr. Hobbs. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s geologic d i s p l a y s 

behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 5. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objections? 

MR. BRUCE: No. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t Number 5 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

Mr. Bruce, your witness. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. Hobbs, loo k i n g a t your E x h i b i t 5, the 

Gavilan-Howard Number 1, what does t h a t w e l l produce i n the 

way of water? 

A. Looking down a t the bottom of t h a t l o g — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Let's make sure we're a l l l o o k i n g 

a t the r i g h t t h i n g . You're l o o k i n g a t the c r o s s - s e c t i o n , 

are you, Mr. Hobbs? 
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THE WITNESS: Yes, I'm lo o k i n g a t the cross-

s e c t i o n . That should be the w e l l on the l e f t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That i n f o r m a t i o n — 

THE WITNESS: I s t h a t the w e l l you're r e f e r r i n g 

to? 

MR. KELLAHIN: That i n f o r m a t i o n i s shown a t the 

bottom of the log s e c t i o n , i s i t not? 

THE WITNESS: Yeah. That w e l l ' s cumulative 

p r o d u c t i o n — Well, i t s i n i t i a l p r o d u c t i o n , i t flowed 90 

MCF of gas a day, f i v e b a r r e l s of o i l per day, and t h a t may 

have been condensate, and 133 b a r r e l s of water per day from 

the p e r f o r a t i o n s as shown on the l o g . 

From 1992 through 1993 t h a t w e l l has cum'd a h a l f 

a m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of gas production, 200 b a r r e l s of o i l 

and — or 20 b a r r e l s of o i l and 200 b a r r e l s of water — and 

according t o our records t h a t w e l l has been i n a c t i v e since 

1994 . 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Did the high r a t e s of water 

p r o d u c t i o n a f f e c t i t s economics? 

A. Yeah, the more water you produce, then you have 

the cost of disposing of the water. 

And also t h a t a c t u a l l y cuts down on the 

p r o d u c t i v i t y of the gas. I f the w e l l — Through the w e l l ' s 

l i f e , i f the amount of water production remains constant, 

then as the gas p o r t i o n of the r e s e r v o i r s t a r t s d e p l e t i n g , 
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i t i s less able t o l i f t t h a t water. So then you have t o 

s t a r t t r y i n g t o pump the water, you know. 

So i t r e a l l y has an o v e r a l l negative e f f e c t on 

the gas p r o d u c t i v i t y of the w e l l . 

Q. Now, what about the Gavilan Number 2? At what 

r a t e d i d t h a t produce water? I n o t i c e t h a t cumulative 

p r o d u c t i o n f i g u r e s show i t produced q u i t e a b i t of water. 

A. Yes, t h i s w e l l i s a r e a l puzzle, because they 

were even more l i m i t e d i n where they p e r f o r a t e d . They j u s t 

p e r f o r a t e d the very upper p a r t of the Point Lookout 

for m a t i o n . They put a sand-water f r a c on the w e l l . 

The i n i t i a l flow showed 600 MCF of gas a day, and 

they d i d not r e p o r t any i n i t i a l water p r o d u c t i o n . But 

apparently through i t s l i f e — and i t s t i l l i s c u r r e n t l y 

making approximately 5 MCF per day and zero o i l , and I 

couldn't get a value on the water — t h a t w e l l produced 50 

m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of gas, 400 b a r r e l s of o i l , and 36,000 

b a r r e l s of water, which i s probably 3 3,000 b a r r e l s over and 

above the amount of water they f r a c ' d the w e l l w i t h . 

So t h a t water i s coming out of the form- — out 

of the wellbore somewhere. You know, whether i t ' s coming 

out of the Point Lookout or the Menefee or — That's p a r t 

of the puzzle of t r y i n g t o evaluate the p o t e n t i a l i n t h i s 

area. 

Q. One f i n a l t h i n g , and maybe t h i s i s f o r the 
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engineer: Was any reserve study done f o r your proposed 

workover of the 2Y well? 

A. I'm so r r y , was a reserve study done? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes, we have t o do t h a t in-house whenever — 

Q. Okay, i s t h a t the engineer's b a i l i w i c k ? 

A. Yes, yes. I ' l l pass the buck on t o him. 

MR. BRUCE: Then I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Bruce. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , any r e d i r e c t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I have no questions of t h i s 

witness. He may be excused. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Next witness, Mr. Examiner, i s Mr. 

C u r t i s Newstrom. Mr. Newstrom i s a petroleum engineer w i t h 

Southland Royalty Company. He resides i n Farmington. 

CURTIS NEWSTROM. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Newstrom, f o r the record would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s C u r t i s Newstrom. I'm a petroleum 

engineer f o r Meridian O i l i n Farmington, New Mexico. 
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Q. On p r i o r occasions, Mr. Newstrom, have you 

t e s t i f i e d before the D i v i s i o n and q u a l i f i e d as a petroleum 

engineering expert witness? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Have you and Mr. Hobbs been p a r t of the t e c h n i c a l 

team t h a t have analyzed the o p p o r t u n i t y f o r Mesaverde 

pr o d u c t i o n out of the H i l l Federal 2Y well? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. As p a r t of your d u t i e s , were you i n v o l v e d i n 

analyzing and preparing recommendations f o r the pluggi n g 

out of the Mancos and the recompletion attempt i n the 

Mesaverde? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And as p a r t of t h a t process, are you aware of the 

a n t i c i p a t e d costs t h a t are proposed t o be i n c u r r e d f o r t h a t 

a c t i v i t y ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Newstrom as an 

expert petroleum engineer. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Are there any objecti o n s ? Mr. 

Newstrom i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Mr. Newstrom, l e t ' s t u r n t o 

E x h i b i t Tab Number 6. Let's look s p e c i f i c a l l y a t — Well, 

changed my mind. 

Let's f i n d the wellbore schematic. I t h i n k 
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t h a t ' s a h e l p f u l place t o s t a r t , and i t was included behind 

E x h i b i t Tab Number 2, i f you remember. 

A. I t ' s i n E x h i b i t 7 by i t s e l f . 

Q. I s i t i n 7 by i t s e l f ? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t u r n t o E x h i b i t 7, then, and 

l e t ' s look a t the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of the w e l l and have you 

describe how i t ' s c u r r e n t l y configured. 

A. On the l e f t side of the schematic i s the c u r r e n t 

s i t u a t i o n . We have 2 3/8 t u b i n g where we have produced the 

Mancos since 1985. 

The proposed s e c t i o n on the r i g h t represents the 

wel l b o r e a f t e r the recompletion w i t h the cement r e t a i n e r 

and cement e f f e c t i v e l y plugging o f f the Mancos fo r m a t i o n 

and the proposed p e r f o r a t i o n s i n the Mesaverde fo r m a t i o n . 

Q. Do you concur w i t h Mr. Hobbs t h a t t h e r e i s no 

f u r t h e r o p p o r t u n i t y f o r production i n t h i s w e l l b o r e out of 

the Mancos formation? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Do you also concur t h a t i t s next best use i s t o 

attempt t o t e s t f o r production out of the Mesaverde, r a t h e r 

than simply plugging the w e l l and abandoning the wellbore? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. What's the proposed a c t i v i t y , then, f o r the 

Mesaverde recompletion, s t a r t i n g f i r s t of a l l w i t h how 
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you're going t o plug out of the Mancos? 

A. The plans t o plug out of the Mancos are t o 

squeeze o f f the e x i s t i n g p e r f o r a t i o n s through a cement 

r e t a i n e r and then recomplete uphole t o the Mesaverde. 

Q. As p a r t of t h a t a c t i v i t y , then, have you analyzed 

a proposed a u t h o r i t y f o r expenditure f o r these estimated 

costs? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And where w i l l we f i n d t h a t t a b u l a t e d i n the 

e x h i b i t book? 

A. Under E x h i b i t Tab Number 6, we have a completion 

cost estimate as w e l l as a f a c i l i t i e s estimate f o r t h i s 

proposed recompletion. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go through t h a t and have you 

summarize f o r us. You don't have t o look a t each of the 

e n t r i e s . Let's j u s t t a l k about the t o t a l s . 

A. The t o t a l s , $250,000, i n terms of t o t a l t a n g i b l e 

and i n t a n g i b l e costs f o r the recompletion, associated w i t h 

the completion, a l l costs i n there i n c l u d e the pluggi n g out 

of the e x i s t i n g Mancos formation and recompleting t o the — 

recompleting and t e s t i n g the Mesaverde fo r m a t i o n . 

Q. I n your opinion, are those f a i r and accurate and 

reasonable costs f o r t h i s type of work? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. And do they represent reasonable estimates f o r 
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each of these p a r t i c u l a r a c t i v i t i e s ? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. When you and the Southland personnel t h a t 

a c t u a l l y undertake t h i s a c t i v i t y — Y o u ' l l make some 

adjustments i n the f i e l d or durin g the course of conducting 

t h i s o p e r a t i o n , and there may be some adjustments or 

changes; i s t h a t not true? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s t r u e . 

Q. Based upon your c u r r e n t opinions, t h i s i s as 

accurate and reasonable as you can f o r e c a s t f o r terms of 

asking owners t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n these costs? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Newstrom. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s 6 and 7, Mr. 

Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Any objections? 

MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 6 and 7 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence. 

Mr. Bruce, your witness. 

CRO S S-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. What would the cost of d r i l l i n g a new Mesaverde 

w e l l be? 
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A. We estimated — Previously t h i s year we estimated 

the cost t o be around $500,000, $550,000, t o d r i l l a w e l l 

t o a s i m i l a r depth. 

Q. Thanks. What do you estimate the t o t a l 

p r o d u c t i o n from the Mesaverde w i l l be from t h i s w e l l ? 

A. I t ' s tough t o say o f f the top of my head what our 

r i s k e d estimate f o r u p l i f t would be. I ' d have t o go back 

and look. But j u s t e s t i m a t i n g , i t would be on the order of 

250 t o 500 MCF a day, i n i t i a l p r oduction run. 

Q. And what about a cumulative production? 

A. I n terms of o v e r a l l reserves? 

Q. Yes. 

A. From the company's standpoint, we consider t h a t 

t o be p r o p r i e t a r y i n f o r m a t i o n . We've done our best t o 

estimate reserves, but obviously there's some s u b j e c t i v i t y 

i n v o l v e d . 

MR. BRUCE: I'd s t i l l ask t h a t q u e s t i o n , Mr. 

Examiner. I f necessary, c l e a r the room and seal t h a t . But 

i t ' s not a t t o r n e y - c l i e n t p r i v i l e g e , and I t h i n k my c l i e n t s 

need t h a t data i n order t o make an informed estimate as t o 

whether or not t o j o i n i n the w e l l . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I o b j e c t . That's 

p r o p r i e t a r y t o Meridian. These i n t e r e s t owners have been 

provided a l l the t e c h n i c a l data, they can make t h e i r own 

an a l y s i s of the r i s k involved i n t h i s process. 
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I'm sure Mr. Newstrom can describe f o r you the 

method and i d e n t i f y the issues of engineering concern. But 

t o a c t u a l l y run or provide the i n t e r n a l economic 

c a l c u l a t i o n s i s of no b e n e f i t t o the other i n t e r e s t owners 

and of no relevance t o the D i v i s i o n . 

And I'm happy t o have Mr. — 

MR. BRUCE: We're not asking f o r any economic 

data; I j u s t want t o know what Meridian or Southland 

Royalty t h i n k s the w e l l w i l l cum. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I don't t h i n k such i n f o r m a t i o n 

i s p e r t i n e n t t o t h i s matter a t t h i s time on compulsory 

p o o l i n g matters. That very seldom ever comes up, of what a 

w e l l — what p o t e n t i a l reserves are. 

Obviously, there are some reserves t h a t t hey're 

t r y i n g t o go a f t e r , and t h a t ' s the whole idea of compulsory 

p o o l i n g . 

MR. BRUCE: Just f o r the record, Mr. Examiner, I 

would note t h a t t h a t would also apply t o c e r t a i n 

c o n f i d e n t i a l geologic data t h a t comes up i n these hearings 

from time t o time and t h a t my c l i e n t s have been r e q u i r e d i n 

the past t o d i v u l g e . 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Okay, Mr. Newstrom, w i l l the w e l l 

pay out? 

A. Yes, by our estimations i t w i l l . 

Q. W i l l i t pay out cost plus 200 percent? 
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A. That's an u n c e r t a i n t y . 

Q. W i l l i t pay out cost plus 50 percent? 

A. That's also an u n c e r t a i n t y . There's a tremendous 

amount of r i s k , both geologic and r e s e r v o i r , associated 

w i t h the p r o j e c t . 

Q. So you t h i n k i t w i l l pay out, but beyond t h a t you 

can't t e l l me? 

A. Yeah, I mean, obviously we t h i n k t h e r e ' s enough 

p o t e n t i a l t o go a f t e r — i n t h i s w e l l b o r e , t o pursue 

t e s t i n g the Mesaverde, but there i s a considerable amount 

of r i s k . 

Q. How much water do you t h i n k t h i s w e l l w i l l 

produce per day? 

A. We're hoping by — through our a n a l y s i s t h a t 

w e ' l l avoid water production completely. 

Q. Okay. I f i t does produce water, how w i l l t h a t be 

disposed of? 

A. We have a couple of d i f f e r e n t o p t i o n s . We have a 

s a l t w a t e r d isposal w e l l i n t h a t area. More than l i k e l y , 

t h a t would be the most prudent o p t i o n , would be t o dispose 

of the water i n t h a t w e l l . 

Q. Meridian has a s a l t w a t e r d i s p o s a l w e l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And would t h i s w e l l be charged f o r t h a t disposal? 

A. Would the cost t o dispose of the water be 
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charged? Yes, s i r , i t would. 

Q. Okay. What i s the going r a t e f o r d i s p o s a l 

charges? 

A. I would have t o check, and I wouldn't want t o 

quote you a number. I would have t o check on t h a t . 

MR. BRUCE: I would appreciate r e c e i v i n g t h a t 

number. 

Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Kell a h i n ? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. From an engineer's perspective, i d e n t i f y f o r us 

the d i f f i c u l t i e s you have had and the conclusions you share 

w i t h Mr. Hobbs about the r i s k i n v o l v e d . 

A. Yeah, as Mr. Hobbs mentioned, the logs are 

suspect i n t h i s area, due t o the c o n d i t i o n of the hole 

d u r i n g d r i l l i n g . And so the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s provided t o 

me t h a t I'm using t o estimate my reserves, t h e r e i s a l o t 

of -- I have t o b u i l d i n a l o t of assumptions and come up 

w i t h my best estimate. But as he t e s t i f i e d , t here's a l o t 

of u n c e r t a i n t y and a l o t of r i s k associated w i t h pursuing 

t h i s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay, t h a t concludes my 

examination of Mr. Newstrom. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you. 
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MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes our p r e s e n t a t i o n , 

Mr. Examiner, w i t h the i n c l u s i o n of what I w i l l stamp as 

Meridian E x h i b i t Number 7. I t ' s my c e r t i f i c a t e of 

n o t i f i c a t i o n . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I t h i n k you already have an 

E x h i b i t 7. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm so r r y , i t should be E x h i b i t 

Number 9, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: For the record, E x h i b i t Number 

8 was a p a r t of E x h i b i t 5. That was a g e o l o g i c a l cross-

s e c t i o n , r i g h t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . And f o r c l a r i t y , I'm 

not sure we've admitted E x h i b i t 8. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I f we haven't, I w i l l go back 

and make i t r e t r o a c t i v e t o the time t h a t we admitted Number 

5, since i t i s a p o r t i o n of t h a t , so E x h i b i t Number 8 i s 

admitted i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

And E x h i b i t Number 9, being the c e r t i f i c a t e of 

m a i l i n g compliance, w i l l also be admitted i n t o evidence a t 

t h i s time. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That's a l l we have, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I have no f u r t h e r questions of 

t h i s witness. You may be excused. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Unless there's questions from the 

D i v i s i o n , t h a t ' s a l l I have t o present, Mr. Examiner. 
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EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: I don't have any witnesses. I ' d j u s t 

l i k e t o make a very b r i e f statement. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay, you may do t h a t a t t h i s 

time. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, my c l i e n t s are i n a 

dilemma. According t o the testimony today, i f they j o i n 

t h e y ' l l probably never recover t h e i r investment. I f they 

don't j o i n , t h e y ' l l c e r t a i n l y never recover t h e i r 

investment, or receive anything from t h e i r i n t e r e s t . 

I suppose there's two ways t o look a t t h i s case. 

I f you l i s t e n t o the g e o l o g i s t who says the r i s k 

i s w e l l i n excess of 200 percent, f r a n k l y , the w e l l i s n ' t 

worth d r i l l i n g , i t ' s a waste of money. I f you look a t 

t h a t , I t h i n k you have a reason t o deny the A p p l i c a t i o n ; 

i t ' s economic waste. 

I f i t i s worth d r i l l i n g , I t h i n k you have t o look 

a t a couple of issues. 

Mr. Goebel d i d s t a r t n e g o t i a t i o n s l a s t J u l y , but 

the only r e a l o f f e r l e t t e r was one i n J u l y , very few 

foll o w - u p n e g o t i a t i o n s , never any o f f e r f o r a farmout or 

purchase, which i s standard i n these cases. I j u s t don't 

t h i n k there's been adequate n e g o t i a t i o n s between p a r t i e s . 

Assuming f o r c e - p o o l i n g i s granted, the reason we 

are asking these gas-balancing questions, we t h i n k they 
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r e f l e c t on several issues. 

According t o my c l i e n t s — I've got a l i t t l e 

l e t t e r t o submit here — I t ' s been several years since t h i s 

w e l l has produced gas. I t ' s taken Meridian/Southland 

Royalty t h a t long t o s t a r t cash balancing. We t h i n k t h i s 

r e f l e c t s on Southland Royalty Company's f i t n e s s as an 

operator. We also t h i n k i t should be r e f l e c t e d i n any 

pena l t y granted i n a f o r c e - p o o l i n g order. And we would 

also suggest terms f o r the f o r c e - p o o l i n g order. 

Because of gas-balancing issues, o b v i o u s l y , my 

c l i e n t s might go q u i t e some time w i t h o u t r e c e i v i n g t h e i r 

share of i n t e r e s t i n the w e l l . As a r e s u l t , I would submit 

a l e t t e r signed by my c l i e n t s which makes a few suggestions 

as t o the overhead r a t e s . We would suggest t h a t you would 

choose the more economic of whatever Southland Royalty has 

proposed or the Erns t and Whinney r a t e s . 

And then you get down t o the pe n a l t y . 

Obviously, Southland Royalty refused t o provide 

i n f o r m a t i o n where we could make a d e c i s i o n on what r e a l l y 

i s a f a i r p enalty, based on engineering, based on w e l l 

reserves. Penalties are based on e q u i t a b l e issues. We 

t h i n k t h a t , a l l t h i n g s considered i n t h i s case, i f f o r c e 

p o o l i n g i s granted, a s u b s t a n t i a l l y reduced p e n a l t y should 

be imposed, much lower than the normal 2 00 percent, j u s t t o 

provide a l l p a r t i e s w i t h a f a i r o p p o r t u n i t y t o recover some 
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and come o f f t h e i r i n t e r e s t s . 

Thank you. 

And I would submit the Objectors' E x h i b i t A t o 

t h i s case. I t ' s a l e t t e r signed by my c l i e n t s , and I would 

j u s t ask t h a t i t be made a p a r t of the record. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. Bruce. E x h i b i t 

A, Objectors', Case 11,432, w i l l be made p a r t of t h e record 

i n t h i s case. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you have anything a t t h i s time? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I would l i k e t o comment on some of 

Mr. Bruce's observations. 

I t i s Southland's opinion t h a t Mr. Bruce's 

c l i e n t s have been t r e a t e d f a i r l y . With regards t o the 

overhead r a t e s , you remember Mr. Van Goebel t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

they were t a k i n g the e x i s t i n g o p e rating agreement, the 

e x i s t i n g r a t e s , they were being escalated pursuant t o the 

COPAS schedule, and the cu r r e n t r a t e s he proposes t o charge 

under the f o r c e - p o o l i n g order are eq u i v a l e n t t o those r a t e s 

t h a t these i n t e r e s t owners are c u r r e n t l y paying f o r a 

producing w e l l when they're charged f o r the Mancos. We 

t h i n k t h a t ' s f a i r and appropriate. 

The f a c t t h a t the schedule w i t h E rns t and Whinney 

might be d i f f e r e n t i s outside t h i s issue, because we are 

d e a l i n g w i t h an e x i s t i n g agreement f o r which we're simply 

t r y i n g t o repeat the e s c a l a t i o n . 
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The issue about gas balancing we have discussed 

t h i s morning. We wanted t o demonstrate t o you t h a t we are 

t a k i n g a l l appropriate a c t i o n t o respond t o these p a r t i e s ' 

concern about gas balancing. 

Mr. Bruce r a i s e s gas balancing apparently only 

r e c e n t l y through h i s c l i e n t s . They c r i t i c i z e Southland f o r 

not i n i t i a t i n g gas balancing e a r l i e r . But as we discussed 

e a r l i e r , Mr. Van Goebel says gas balancing does not occur 

u n t i l the wellbore has been plugged out of the Mancos. 

Now, h i s c l i e n t s could have asked t h a t t h i s 

w e l l b o r e be plugged out of t h i s zone much e a r l i e r . They 

were p a r t i c i p a n t s under t h a t agreement and could have 

i n i t i a t e d t h a t process on t h e i r own. I f there's been a 

delay, they've acquiesced i n t h a t delay. 

We have proposed t o them i n w r i t i n g , the J u l y 

17th l e t t e r . Mr. Bruce i s i n c o r r e c t when he suggests t h a t 

we are under some o b l i g a t i o n t o o f f e r t o purchase t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t , t o provide them w i t h a d d i t i o n a l compensation t o 

farm out t h e i r i n t e r e s t . That i s not r e q u i r e d under New 

Mexico f o r c e p o o l i n g procedures. We have i n v i t e d them the 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o pay t h e i r share. 

This i s a h i g h l y r i s k y prospect. I t i s Meridian 

t h a t i s going t o pay the $250,000 worth of costs. I f h i s 

c l i e n t s consider i t too r i s k y , then they don't have t o pay 

a t h i n g . I t ' s Meridian t h a t ' s going t o put t h e i r money up 
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front to do the prospect. 

We t h i n k i t ' s f a i r and reasonable, i t ' s under the 

standard p r o v i s i o n s of force p o o l i n g , and we would ask t h a t 

you issue an order accordingly. 

Thank you. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Does anybody else have 

anything f u r t h e r i n Case Number 11,432 a t t h i s time? 

This case w i l l be taken under advisement. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

10:07 a.m.) 

* * * 
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